


The following are minutes of the Bettendorf Board of Adjustment and are a synopsis of
the discussion that took place at this meeting and as such may not include the entirety
of each statement made.  The minutes of each meeting do not become official until
approved at the next board meeting.

MINUTES
BETTENDORF BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

JUNE 23, 2009
5:00 P.M.

Chairman Stelk called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.

Item 1.  Roll Call

PRESENT: Howe, Stelk, Voelliger
ABSENT: Eikenberry, McElhiney
STAFF: Connors, Fuhrman, Soenksen

Item 2.  Review of Board Procedures.

Item 3. The Board to review and approve the minutes of the meeting of May 14, 2009.

On motion by Voelliger, seconded by Howe, that the minutes of the
meeting of May 14, 2009 be approved as submitted.

ALL AYES

Motion carried.

Item 4.  The Board to hold a public hearing on the following items:

Stelk announced that Case 09-044 would be postponed until later in the meeting.

b. Case 09-045; 1227 Broadlawn Avenue (R-1) - A request for a variance to allow a
swimming pool in the required front yard, submitted by Nathan Durick.
(Withdrawn)

c. Case 09-046; 717 Brown Street (C-1) – A request for a variance to increase the
allowable living area to garage ratio from 40% to 44%, submitted by William
Frazier.

Stelk asked if there was an affidavit of publication.  Soenksen stated that notice of public
hearing had been received.  Notice and affidavit of publication are Annex #2 to these
minutes.

Soenksen reviewed the staff report.  Staff report is Annex #3 to these minutes.

There being no one present wishing to speak in favor of or in opposition to the request,
Stelk closed the public hearing.



Bettendorf Board of Adjustment                               June 23,  2009 Page 2

Voelliger commented that he feels that the request is fair.  Howe concurred.

On motion by Howe, seconded by Voelliger, that the request for a
variance to increase the allowable living area to garage ratio from 40% to
44% be approved in accordance with the Decision and Order.

ALL AYES

Motion carried.

Decision and Order is Annex #4 to these minutes.

d. Case 09-047; 1414 - 25th Street (R-2) – A request for a variance to increase the
allowable fence height from 6 feet to 7 ½ feet, submitted by William Grothusen.

Stelk asked if there was an affidavit of publication.  Soenksen stated that notice of public
hearing had been received.  Notice and affidavit of publication are Annex #2 to these
minutes.

Soenksen reviewed the staff report.  Staff report is Annex #5 to these minutes.

Stelk asked if there was anyone present wishing to speak in favor of the request.

William Grothusen, the applicant, stated that his neighbor has no objections to the
fence installation.  He indicated that the fence section would likely be less than 16 feet
long.

Howe asked if the applicant had given any consideration to landscaping the area rather
than installing a fence.  Grothusen stated that he had considered that option, but had
chosen a fence because of the maintenance that would be involved with shrubbery.  He
added that a fence is more desirable as plantings would take a substantial amount of
time to grow before they could provide the same amount of privacy as would the fence.

Howe asked what type of fence the applicant plans to install.  Grothusen explained that
it would be a decorative staggered-board, wooden fence.  He indicated that the fence
on the other side of the property has a lattice on top.

Howe expressed concern about the negative precedent that might be set if the Board
approves the request.  He indicated that he believes that the current case is different
than the request for an 8-foot high fence at 1322 Highland Park Drive.  He stated that
there were severe topographical issues involved in that case.

Voelliger commented that he believes a fence is the better option to provide the desired
privacy as it will take less space than bushes would.  He added that he is supportive of
the request.  Stelk concurred, reiterating that the maintenance of plantings might
become an issue in the future.



Bettendorf Board of Adjustment                               June 23,  2009 Page 3

There being no one present else wishing to speak in favor of or in opposition to the
request, Stelk closed the public hearing.

Howe stated that because of the short length, he believes that the proposed fence is
similar to a lawn ornament and therefore is not a precedent-setting request.  He
requested that the applicant’s fence be as short a length as possible.

On motion by Voelliger, seconded by Howe, that the request for a
variance to increase the allowable fence height from 6 feet to 7 ½ feet be
approved in accordance with the Decision and Order.

ALL AYES

Motion carried.

Decision and Order is Annex #6 to these minutes.

e. Case 09-048; 3590 East Harbor Drive (R-1) – A request for an appeal of the
Zoning Administrator’s determination that a generator is not considered a
building structure and therefore is not subject to side yard setback requirements,
submitted by Stephen Chlebowski.

Stelk asked if there was an affidavit of publication.  Soenksen stated that notice of public
hearing had been received.  Notice and affidavit of publication are Annex #2 to these
minutes.

Soenksen reviewed the staff report.  Staff report is Annex #7 to these minutes.

Stelk asked if there was anyone present wishing to speak in favor of the request.

Steve Chlebowski, the applicant, stated that he never suggested that the generator itself
is a structure, merely that it is attached to a structure and adds an additional 4 feet to it.
He indicated that the generator is a part of the existing structure now.  He stated that
the generator in question emits enough noise that it would violate Bettendorf’s noise
ordinance when it is running.  Chlebowski stated that while he has never experienced a
long-term power outage in the approximately 5 years he has lived in the neighborhood,
if this would occur, he would be forced to listen to his neighbor’s generator and it is
possible that the exhaust could go into his house.

Stelk asked if the generator is run by natural gas.  Soenksen confirmed this, adding that
the accessibility of the gas line and service panel were contributing factors when the
location for the generator was chosen.

Chlebowski stated that he does not believe that he would be able to sleep if the
generator had to run constantly.  He added that his and his other  adjacent neighbor’s
air conditioning condensers are at ground level.



Bettendorf Board of Adjustment                               June 23,  2009 Page 4

Stelk asked if there are any type of sound dampening technologies available.  Connors
explained that there might be, but that the issue for the Board’s consideration is
whether or not any type of utility apparatus installed in a side yard or on the side of a
house is considered an encroachment.  He indicated that there are nuisance ordinances
already in place to deal with the applicant’s other issues.

Mel Foster III, 3590 East Harbor Drive, explained that it is his generator that is at issue.
He indicated that at additional expense, he endeavored to make the generator itself, the
trim, and the supports match the house as closely as possible.  He added that during the
installation when it became apparent that Chlebowski was unhappy, he instructed the
contractor to install the switch panel and the conduit inside so that it would be less
obtrusive.  He reiterated that the location of the generator was chosen based on
accessibility to the gas meter and service panel.  Foster explained that the generator was
installed aboveground in order to prevent flotsam from damaging it during flooding
and thus disabling his sump pumps. He stated that during flooding approximately 2
years ago, his neighbor ran a generator to power the pumps surrounding his home.  He
indicated that the generator is sufficient to power his entire home during a power
outage, including all of the necessary sump pumps.  Foster stated that he has made a
substantial investment in the generator to be used to provide a backup during flooding.
He commented that the applicant’s power boat emits exhaust and noise much louder
than his generator would.

Chlebowski stated that his most pressing complaint is that of the location of the
generator.  He indicated that the applicant could have installed it in another location,
adding that the applicant had taken no one else into consideration when the site was
chosen.  He explained that there is an empty lot on the other side of the house.
Chlebowski stated that it would not be difficult or expensive merely to run more conduit
and a gas line to a different location.

There being no one else present wishing to speak in favor of or in opposition to the
request, Stelk closed the public hearing.

Howe stated that he concurs with staff with regard to the fact that the noise emitted by
the generator is not in the Board’s purview.  He commented that there are likely several
sound-deadening materials that could be utilized by either property owner.  Howe
stated that the frequency of use will likely be minimal, adding that he is not supportive
of the applicant’s appeal.  Stelk  and Voelliger concurred.

On motion by Howe, seconded by Voelliger, that the request for an
appeal of the Zoning Administrator’s determination that a generator is not
considered a building structure and therefore is not subject to side yard
setback requirements be denied in accordance with the Decision and
Order.

ALL AYES

Motion carried.



Bettendorf Board of Adjustment                               June 23,  2009 Page 5

Decision and Order is Annex #8 to these minutes.

a. Case 09-044; 6517 Ocean Boulevard (R-1) - A request for a variance to reduce the
required rear yard setback from 40 feet to 35 feet to allow for a 18-foot by 18-foot
deck, submitted by Lovewell Fencing, Inc.

Stelk asked if there was an affidavit of publication.  Soenksen stated that notice of public
hearing had been received.  Notice and affidavit of publication are Annex #2 to these
minutes.

Soenksen reviewed the staff report.  Staff report is Annex #9 to these minutes.

Howe asked if all of the homes in the subdivision were built at a 30-foot front yard
setback and if the developer has already taken advantage of a new ordinance intended
to address the difficulties posed by requiring staggered setbacks as is typical in R-1
subdivisions.  Soenksen confirmed this.  Connors added that the developer had platted
the first two subdivisions in the area using the staggered setback.  He indicated that
subsequent to that platting, the developer approached the city to request some type of
relief from those requirements.  Soenksen explained that currently developers have the
option to use the staggered setback requirement or to use a 30-foot front yard setback
and incorporate some sort of offset architectural feature to the home which would give
the same aesthetic impression.  Howe commented that the developer already
maximized the amount of rear yard available for a deck when the subdivision was
platted with 30-foot front yard setbacks rather than the more generous staggered ones.
Connors concurred.

Stelk asked if there was anyone present wishing to speak in favor of the request.

Mary Meehan, 6517 Ocean Boulevard, stated that she had been under the impression
that only a 2 ½ variance was actually required.  Soenksen explained that as long as the
request is for a smaller encroachment, the case could still be heard.  He commented that
according to the information he received, the variance required would be 5 feet.

Howe asked how far the deck would extend from the rear of the home.  Soenksen
stated that it would be 18 feet deep.

Mike Lovewell, the applicant, stated that the deck would extend 11 feet from the house,
adding that there is only 8 ½ feet of available rear yard setback.  He indicated that he
had double-checked the measurements, and the variance request is for a 2 ½-foot
encroachment.

Meehan stated that her 94 year old mother who uses a walker visits frequently and she
would like her to have enough room to move around.  She added that she has 10
grandchildren who are often at her home who need room to play.  She stated that the
deck is for her family’s enjoyment and her convenience.

Howe asked why the applicant had not chosen to extend the deck further into the
buildable area of the lot rather than encroach into the setback.  Meehan explained that



Bettendorf Board of Adjustment                               June 23,  2009 Page 6

she does not believe that her next door neighbor, who also has a deck, would like her
to place the deck so close to the existing one.

Voelliger commented that he is in favor of the request.

Howe stated that he does not believe that a hardship has been established and that a
negative precedent would be set by approving the request.  He stated that if the case is
approved, other neighbors will likely make similar variance requests.  He indicated that
the applicant could choose to place the deck to the left in the buildable area of the lot,
adding that the 8 ½-foot depth of the deck that would be allowed is sufficient to allow
maneuverability.  He reiterated that the applicant’s situation is a direct result of the
developer’s attempt to maximize the number of lots in the subdivision by building all of
the houses at a 30-foot front yard setback.

Stelk commented that a unanimous vote would be required to approve the variance.
Howe suggested that the applicant may wish to defer the request until such time as
there are more Board members present.

Meehan stated that the water spigot would interfere with the deck’s being placed to the
left.  Howe stated that there are still other options, adding that the placement of the
faucet is not a legitimate hardship.

There being no further business, it was unanimously approved to adjourn the meeting
at approximately 6:00 p.m.

These minutes and annexes approved                                                             

                                                            
John Soenksen
City Planner



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
City Hall Annex • 4403 Devils Glen Road, Bettendorf, Iowa 52722 • (563) 344-4055

June 11, 2009

Staff Report

Case No. 09-044
Location:  6517 Ocean Boulevard
Applicant:  Lovewell Fencing, Inc.
Zoning Designation:  R-1, Single-family Residence District
Request: Variance to reduce the required rear yard setback from 40 feet to 35 feet to allow
construction of an 18-foot by 18-foot deck.

Background Information and Facts
The site is located west of Middle Road and south of Forest Grove Drive on the east side of
Ocean Boulevard (see Attachment A – Location Map, and Attachment B – House Photo).  The
applicant is seeking a variance to reduce the rear yard setback by 5 feet to allow construction of
a deck (see Attachment C – Plot Plan).

Staff Analysis
Although the lots in this subdivision meet the minimum standards for an R-1 District (75-foot
wide lots at least 10,000 square feet in size) the subdivision is much more similar to one that
might be located in an R-2 District (see Attachment D – Beaver Crossing Third Addition Plat).
The description of the R-1 District states that it is “the most restrictive district and is composed of
low-density residential areas”.   The final plat, Attachment D, demonstrates that this area is not
typical of other R-1 districts in the city that have larger lots and structures.  The developer
purposely chose to plat this subdivision more densely to offer an alternative to the many new
areas with very large homes.  This development is somewhat unique in that if offers new homes
with smaller square footages at a reduced price.  This development fulfilled a niche in the
Bettendorf market which for many years had not been met.

The description of the R-2 District states that it “provides for protection of certain older areas of
the city”.  Therefore, a fair interpretation of the code would assume that newer subdivisions
should be limited to the R-1 zoning district since they are not located in older areas of the city.
This was the dilemma faced by the developer of this subdivision - how to offer more affordable
houses on smaller lots to the public while adhering to the code.  As a result of the above, the
following facts pertain to the lot involved in this case:

1. The lot measures 141 feet deep.
2. The front setback measures 30 feet.
3. The rear setback measures 40 feet.
4. Approximately ½ of the depth of the lot is considered setback space.
5. The lot contains 10,575 square feet.
6. Setbacks occupy 6,670 square feet of this lot (2,250=front, 3,000=rear, and 1,420=sides)
7. Over 63% of this lot is devoted to setback space.



While recognizing the above facts, it should also be noted that staff proposed an ordinance
change to address these items which was adopted by the City Council and passed into law.  The
ordinance allowed this developer to place all houses at the minimum front yard setback (rather
than observing a staggered 30-foot, 35-foot, and 40-foot front yard setback that would
otherwise have been required) if the houses were built to incorporate some staggered features
to the fronts of the houses.

Approximately 72 square feet of the proposed deck would encroach into the required setback.
If allowed, the deck would still be set back 35 feet from the rear property line.  The applicant is
asking the Board to consider the above facts as a legitimate hardship.

Respectfully submitted,

John Soenksen
City Planner



johns

johns
Attachment - A

johns

johns

johns
SITE



johns

johns

johns

johns
Attachment - B



johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns
Attachment - C



johns
Attachment - D







COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
City Hall Annex • 4403 Devils Glen Road, Bettendorf, Iowa 52722 • (563) 344-4055

July 9, 2009

Staff Report

Case No. 09-056
Location:  3346 Towne Pointe Drive, 3363 Devils Glen Road, and 3365 Devils Glen Road
Applicant: Oxbow Development, LLC
Zoning Designation:  C-2, Community Shopping District
Request:  Approval of a special location parking plan

Background Information and Facts
The site is located in the Towne Pointe Drive shopping/business park northwest of the
Bettendorf Fareway Store (see Attachment A - Location Map).  The applicant is
proposing to build a 4-story, 129-unit apartment complex and needs an additional off-
premises parking lot in order to meet Code requirements.  Since the additional parking
lot is not on the same parcel as the apartment complex, the Code requires the Board to
review the proposed plan and determine if it meets the Code’s standards.  If approved,
the additional parking lot will allow the developer to exceed the required parking for
this project.

Staff Analysis
The off-site parking lot is located south of the proposed apartment complex and is
separated from the site by two existing buildings (see Attachment B – Site Plan).  The
Code states that an off-site parking lot for this district is considered “walkable” if:

The walking distance from the nearest portion of the parking facility to the
nearest portion of the building is within 300 feet.

Therefore, the distance must be measured along the designated walking route and not
measured in a straight line between the two facilities.  The designated walking route will
be on a public sidewalk (not yet installed) along the west side of Towne Pointe Drive
shown in red on Attachment B.  Staff walked the route and measured the distance using
a measuring wheel which revealed a distance of 275-280 feet between the nearest
portion of the parking lot and the proposed apartment complex.  Therefore, the plan
meets the standard set forth in the Code.

In previous special location plan cases much consideration was given to traffic counts
along the route used to connect the parking facility and the related building.  This was a
particular concern for a parking lot in the 600 block of State Street.  In this case, the
designated route is along Towne Pointe Drive which has minimal usage throughout the
day with the exception of certain times on Saturday and Sunday when traffic is entering



and exiting Bettendorf Christian Church.  In fact, the usage of Towne Pointe Drive is so
low that the city has never conducted a traffic count and, to this date, has no traffic
counts scheduled for that street.

In previous cases the Board has also considered topographical issues when determining
the “walkability” of a route.  In this case there are no adverse topographical issues as the
designated route is completely level.

There is a greenspace between the two existing buildings north of the proposed off-site
parking lot (see Attachment B).  The developer has indicated that he is attempting to
negotiate an access easement through this greenspace and would like to place a
sidewalk connecting the apartment and the parking lot in a more direct fashion (see
Attachment C – Alternate Route).  If this can be accomplished, staff feels that it would be
a better alternative; however, at this time the developer does not have any ownership
rights for that route and therefore it would not be appropriate for staff to require or
recommend this option.

The proposed site plan was initially presented to the Planning and Zoning Commission
at the June 2009 meeting. The Commission members, as well as the owner of one of
the existing buildings in this area, expressed concern that apartment tenants would opt
to walk through the parking lot between the existing buildings rather than using the
designated walking route.  A letter from Mr. Steve Swanson is attached to this report
expressing these concerns.  Therefore, staff is pleased that the developer has
approached the owner to the north in an effort to install an alternative or additional
sidewalk.

Staff Recommendation
While the plan meets the standards set forth in the Code, some concerns were
expressed by Planning and Zoning Commissioners and neighbors.  At the time of this
report, the developer is attempting to address those concerns and acquire an additional
or alternate route between the off-site lot and the apartment complex.  The developer
will report on the progress, if any, of those efforts at the Board meeting.  Since the
designated walking route is along and adjacent to land that is not owned by the
developer, an agreement specifying who will pay to install the sidewalk and the timing
of the installation of the sidewalk should be presented to the Board at the meeting.

Respectfully submitted,

John Soenksen
City Planner



johns

johns
Parking Lot



johns

johns
Attachment - B

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns
4-story Apartment Complex

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns
Sidewalk

johns
Off-site Parking

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns
Existing
Building

johns
Existing
Building

johns
Parking

johns
Parking

johns
Parking

johns
Parking



johns
Attachment - C

johns

johns

johns

johns

johns






	AGENDA

	MINUTES 6/23/09

	09-044 6517 OCEAN BOULEVARD - VAR

	(A) LOCATION MAP

	(B) HOUSE PHOTO

	(C) PLOT PLAN

	(D) FINAL PLAT

	APPLICATION


	09-056 3346 TOWNE POINTE DR, 3363 AND 3365 DEVILS GLEN ROAD - SLP

	(A) LOCATION MAP

	(B) SITE PLAN

	(C) ALTERNATE ROUTE

	APPLICATION





